l’b‘a%a

L4 ‘-u—

wer
NORTHWEST TERRITORIES
TOWN OF HAY RIVER April 27", 2020
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 6:30pm
AGENDA
PUBLIC INPUT

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS, AWARDS, CEREMONIES & PRESENTATIONS

5. MINUTES
a. Regular Meeting of Council —April 20", 2020 — page 2-7

6. ADMINISTRATIVE ENQUIRIES

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS
a. Tourism and Economic Development Plan — page 8-25

8. BYLAWS
a. Bylaw 2419 — Acquistion of Land — Third and Final Reading — page 26-28

9. NOTICES OF MOTIONS
10. IN CAMERA
a. Matters under Consideration - pursuant to Cities, Towns & Villages Act, S.N.W.T.

2003 c. 22, Section 23. (3), (e)

11. ADJOURNMENT

Page 1 of 1



“

v-hr"

t'l;;e;b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES April 20t 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

W

The Special Meeting of Council was held on Monday, April 20", 2020 at 6:30pm By Video
Conference Call

Present: Mayor Kandis Jameson, Deputy Mayor Bouchard, Councilors Duford, Anderson,
Chambers, Dohey, Groenewegen and Willows

Staff: SAO Judy Goucher, ASAO — Glenn Smith, Director of Recreation — Stephane Millette,
Director of Protective Services — Ross Potter, Director of Public Works — Mike Auge,
Director of Finance — Sam Mugford, Council Administrator — Stacey Barnes

1. CALL TO ORDER:
This Meeting was called to order at 6:30pm with Mayor Jameson presiding.

2. ADOPTION OF AGENDA
#20-078 MOVED BY CLLR CHAMBERS
SECONDED BY: CLLR ANDERSON

ADD 8b) Arctic Inspiration Ambassador & 8c) Letter of Support to henry Tambour

3. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest at the Emergency Meeting of Council on Monday, April
20", 2020.

4, ANNOUNCMENTS, AWARDS & PRESENTATIONS
¢ Mayor Jameson sent out condolences to the province of Nova Scotia
¢ Clir Dohey thanked residents and businesses of Hay River during the COVID
pandemic.
o Mayor Jameson thanked ASAO Smith, Director of Protective Services Ross Potter
and the EMO committee for all their work with the breakup and activities

5. SPECIAL MEETING OF COUNCIL MINUTES — MONDAY, APRIL 6" 2020

#20-079 MOVED BY: CLLR WILLOWS
SECONDED BY: CLLR CHAMBERS

6. INFORMATION ONLY
e Hay River RCMP Monthly Policing Report for March 2020

7. ADMINISTRATIVE ENQUIRIES

Director of Finance — Sam Mugford
¢ All finance and administrative staff are working from home
¢ We are maintaining core functions
e Progressing through the year end audit — should be coming in the next few weeks
e Offering credit card payments through option pay — all positive feedback so far

Page 1 of 6



“

W

t'L;é;b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES April 20t 2020

NDR'HWEST TERRITORIES

/J

e Working on a Mill Rate calculations
o Have a meeting with Intergroup to discuss updating utility rates

Director of Protective Services — Ross Potter
e Getting the cameras and sensors up and running
RCMP have been sending pictures of Chinchaga
Levels at the border are slowly rising — nothing to by concerned about
Lots of melting in the Hay River area
Received the ice readings back and its average as previous years
Culverts in the West Channel will be opened up
The beaver dam in the ox bow trial will be removed on Wednesday

Clir Dohey — When will the Vale Island packages be delivered? How has it been reaching out to
them?

ASAQO Smith — The packages were delivered today. For the surveys to date out of 190 residents, we
have contacted approximately 135 and will continue to reach out to the rest.

Director of Recreation — Stephane Millette

Recreation dept has been busy with preparing for spring/summer with Town assets
Working on funding reporting and applications

Getting a hard start with the Community Centre when it starts back up

Working to update procedures and policies

Programming staff has been working on “covid” safe programs we can offer.
Recreation staff has been supporting breakup preparedness

Director of Public Works — Mike Auge
¢ Operations are running with covid precautions in place
¢ Floodgates are being monitored. Once snow is melted, they will be closed
o With capital projects — Caribou Crescent has closed, and the new lift station tender is
out.

o Working on water license comments to do with our application

Clir Dohey — Have we reached out to contractors on capital jobs to see if they are feasible to
complete? Are there other capital projects that can be bumped up?

M. Auge — All contractors have stated they will be using local workers. Concrete and asphalt is not till
2021. The lift station is bigger, if there is any concerns the contractor will let us know.

Clir Groenewegen — With freeze ups on McBryan and the installation of bleeders. Is there a different
approach for upcoming projects?

M. Auge — We can install thermostats in the ground to see how deep it freezes in future projects.

Assistant Senior Administrative Officer — Glenn Smith
e Breakup has been based around covid influence
e Communications
» Sent out communications around funding from various sources

Page 2 of 6



“

W

t'L;é;b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES April 20t 2020

NDR'HWEST TERRITORIES

/J

» Posted updated information from the CPHO around gatherings and the
enforcement
» Posted a Mayors message
» Used social media, website, radio, Seniors Association, Chamber and CBC to
get information out.
Breakup Preparedness
» Working out a 3-tier accommodation plan
Packages have been delivered to Vale Island Residents
Working to protect our public assets, ditches and culverts
Pavilion had its walls removed
Some work on the snye has been done
» Reception centre in case of evacuation will be set up at the Community Centre
Tourism and Economic Development
» Submitted a CanNor application for 750K over multiple years for tourism
marketing and infrastructure development
» Highway signage from Enterprise to Border has been completed
» Sent information to Seniors regarding a United Way Program that is now
available
Thank you to the Snowmobile Club for their partnership enhancing the trail system. It
has been extended, made safer and install signage
Thank you to Arctech for their IT support setting all staff to work form home during the
pandemic.

>
>
>
>

Senior Administrative Officer — Judy Goucher
o The local EMO committee has been meeting twice weekly. We have added a section
to the risk matrix around breakup in a pandemic
o Weekly calls with the Minister of MACA (Premier) giving GNWT updates
o MACA has mutual concerns In the South Slave

Mayor Jameson — Have been receiving a lot of questions around the water break by the Esso
M. Auge — It is under control, leaving it for a few days allows PW staff to continue with other activities

and allows the ground to thaw before we dig. The water is collecting in the ditch and being
monitoring.

8. NEW BUSINESS

a. Caribou Crescent Upgrade Project

| RECOMMENDATION:

#20-080 MOVED BY: CLLR CHAMBERS
SECONDED BY: CLLR ANDERSON

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER awards the tender for Caribou Crescent
Upgrades to Rowe’s Construction as they were the only bidders at a cost of $2,212,000.00
(+GST).

Page 3 of 6



“

W

[‘;‘ej}/ REGULAR MEETING MINUTES April 20t 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

W

CARRIED

| BACKGROUND:

There was a tender that went out on March 19, 2020 for Caribou Crescent upgrades, which closed
on April 9, 2020. Rowe’s Construction was the only applicant that submitted a tender.

The tender submitted by Rowe’s Construction was for $2,212,000.00 (+GST) which includes a
provisional amount of $214,550.00 (+GST) to include sidewalks in the project.

This project is a two-year project which will include underground water, sewer, and road base work
in 2020 followed by asphalt and concrete paving work in 2021.

The project is included in the capital budget at a total of $2,492,522.00 in the 2020 and 2021
budgets which includes $204,000.00 for the provisional sidewalk work as well as budget for
engineering and consultant fees.

The decision on whether to move forward with the provisional sidewalks does not need to be made
at this time. Administration will be bringing forward a report for discussion by Council at a later date
on provisional sidewalk work for all of the upcoming projects in the area including Caribou Crescent,
Beaver Crescent, and Riverview Drive.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL: |

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

N/A

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: |

Project is included in the 2020 approved capital budget with the paving portion included in the
proposed 2021 capital budget. The tender value falls within the combined 2020 and 2021 budgets
for this project.

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: |

N/A

| ATTACHMENTS:

¢ Recommendation letter from Stantec

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
Mike Auge Judy Goucher
Director of Public Works SAO

Page 4 of 6



“

v-hr"

t'l;;e;b REGULAR MEETING MINUTES April 20t 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

W

Date: April 15, 2020 Date: April 16, 2020

b. Arctic Inspiration Ambassador

Deputy Mayor Bouchard updated Council and Administration that he was asked to sit on the Arctic
inspiration Prize committee as an Ambassador by NWTAC representing the Town of Hay River.

c. Letter of Support for Henry Tambour

#20-081 MOVED BY: CLLR WILLOWS
SECONDED BY: CLLR GROENEWEGEN

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER directs Administration to issue a letter of
support to Henry Tambour to submit to the airport to use his drone to fly over Hay River
during the pandemic.

CARRIED
9. BYLAWS
a) Bylaw 2419 — Acquisition of Land — First Reading
#20-082 MOVED BY: CLLR DOHEY
SECONDED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD
CARRIED
Bylaw 2419 — Acquisition of Land — First Reading
#20-083 MOVED BY: CLLR DOHEY
SECONDED BY: CLLR GROENEWEGEN
CARRIED

10. NOTICE OF MOTIONS
There we no notice of motions for the Regular Meeting of Council, Monday, April 20", 2020.

11. IN CAMERA

#20-084 MOVED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD
SECONDED BY: CLLR DUFORD

That the Council of the Town of Hay River move to In Camera at 7:21pm.

CARRIED

Page 5 of 6



12.

ﬁ'&é% REGULAR MEETING MINUTES April 20t 2020

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

#20-085 MOVED BY: CLLR WILLOWS
SECONDED BY: DEPUTY MAYOR BOUCHARD

That the Council of the Town of Hay River move out of In Camera At 9:01PM.

CARRIED
ADJOURNMENT
#20-086 MOVED BY: CLLR WILLOWS
That the Regular Meeting of Council be adjourned at 9:02pm.

CARRIED

Certified Correct as Recorded on the 20t Day of April 2020

These minutes were accepted by motion #

Mayor

Senior Administrative Officer

Page 6 of 6



o
Fsy  STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL
”{t wer

sssssssssssssssssss

COMMITTEE: TOURISM & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DATE: March 9, 2020

SUBJECT: 2020 HAY RIVER TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PLAN

| RECOMMENDATION:

MOVED BY: CLLR ANDERSON
SECONDED BY: CLLR DUFORD

THAT THE COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER approves the 2020 Hay River
Tourism Development Plan as recommended by the Tourism & Economic Development
Committee.

| BACKGROUND: |

The Town of Hay River has historically maintained a tourism plan that serves to guide the
direction of Council and Administration with respect to tourism development. The tourism plans
provide valuable insight and prospective opportunities for local industry stakeholders and help
build a foundation for community tourism. The latest Town of Hay River tourism plan was
approved in 2012.

The 2020 Hay River Tourism Development Plan was developed through literature reviews and
research that included:
1. 2012 Town of Hay River Tourism Development Plan
2. 2019 Town of Hay River Tourism and Economic Development Committee Planning
Session
3. 2019-23 Town of Hay River Strategic Plan
4. 2020 Town of Hay River Tourism and Economic Development Department Annual
Business Plan
5. Tourism 2020 — Industry, Tourism and Investment, GNWT

The 2020 plan presents a refined tourism development vision and complementary set of goals
relevant to tourism development for the community of Hay River. Realistic strategies that
consider the tourism environment are presented to achieve the vision and goals. Specific
strategic initiatives with expected outcomes are prioritized over a 3 year period.

The Tourism and Economic Development Committee has reviewed the draft 2020 Hay River
Tourism Development Plan and recommends that the Council of the Town of Hay River approve
the plan as presented. The Committee looks forward to providing support through its
execution.

| COUNCIL POLICY / STRATEGY OR GOAL:

N/A

| APPLICABLE LEGISLATION, BYLAWS, STUDIES, PLANS:

N/A



=
#@“5’3 STANDING COMMITTEE OF COUNCIL
@

wer

sssssssssssssssssss

COMMITTEE: TOURISM & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DATE: March 9, 2020

SUBJECT: 2020 HAY RIVER TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PLAN

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: |

- The majority of 2020 initiatives are included in approved 2020 operational and capital
budgets. Any initiatives identified in future years that will require additional funding will
be presented for approval through the standard budgeting process.

| ALTERNATIVES TO RECOMMENDATIONS: |

- Do not approve plan — Administration uses existing plans to execute tourism
development activities

| ATTACHMENTS:

- 2020 Hay River Tourism Development Plan

Prepared by: Approved by:
Glenn Smith Judy Goucher
Assistant Senior Administrative Officer Senior Administrative Officer

March 5, 2020 March 5, 2020



ALEXANDRA FALLS, NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

2020 HAY RIVER TOURISM
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

March 9, 2020 - Hayriver.com - Facebook.com/TownOfHayRiver ﬁ



w0
u
o
=
24
[24
w
=
&b
5
=
24
()
z
v
-
3
w
w
@
2
(o)
|




CONTENTS

Introduction (o)
Plan Forecast 03

Product Development
Versus Marketing 03

Researching the
Tourism Environment 04

Forming the 2020 Hay River
Tourism Development Plan 08

” S - ‘r LT -

i . =y [

RIVER TQURISMIDEVELOPMENTHLAN 1
. A ) “:3"*2.‘ z

|, B

[P T



As a transportation hub with several
natural attractions and long-standing
organized community events, the
town of Hay River has a rich history of
attracting visitors to the town.

With NWT visitation numbers at an all-

time high and projecting to increase, Hay
River can further capitalize on the tourism
demand by identifying and developing its
tourism product. The Town of Hay River and
the Tourism and Economic Development
Committee recognized the value of an
updated tourism development plan that
analyzes today’s tourism environment and
outlines strategic opportunities. Through this
interest, a 3 year plan has been developed to
set the course of tourism development for the
Town of Hay River and to provide insight to the
local tourism stakeholders.

The 2020 Hay River Tourism Development
Plan builds upon the research, goals and
strategies conducted and identified in the
community’s last approved tourism plan, the
2012 Town of Hay River Tourism Development
Plan. The 2012 plan was developed through

a thorough analysis of the Hay River area
tourism environment and incorporated many
data inputs. To build on the work completed
through the 2012 plan, more recent key inputs
were considered and appropriately integrated
into the 2020 version.

A refined vision and complementary set

of goals relevant to tourism development

for the town of Hay River sets the general
direction and focus for tourism improvement.
In order to achieve the defined goals and

the ultimate vision of tourism for Hay River,

a strong understanding of the community’s
environment is essential. Identified

key strengths must be leveraged and
opportunities seized while current weaknesses
and threats are mitigated. Through this
reflection tourism strategies are formed that
are realistic and achievable.

The 2020 Tourism Development Plan
incorporates a set of yearly initiatives for each
strategy presented. Initiatives are prioritized
and will be assigned to Town of Hay River staff
as objectives for completion. Important to
achieving the initiatives is securing necessary
financial resources. With a strong competition
for limited dollars, it will be important to
access contribution funding from outside
sources.




IVALLSIH SAVA AR

| \3SHN0D 470D AN AVH ",

1. Plan Forecast

The 2020 Hay River Tourism Development
Plan defines a long-term tourism vision and
accompanying goals while emphasising short-
term strategies and initiatives. The vision and
goals are intended to stand the test of time
while the strategic initiatives are presented
over a shorter period in attempts to focus on
more immediate operational action. Initiatives
are allocated through a 3 year schedule

with an indication of what success through
implementation will look like.

2. Product
Development
Versus Marketing

A key factor in successfully executing a
tourism product is marketing. The 2020 Hay
River Tourism Development Plan focuses on
identifying and setting a path for development
of Hay River’s tourism product. In some cases,
the 2020 plan may highlight the need for
marketing activities, but it will not get into the
specifics of how to market. A separate tourism
marketing plan will be developed to outline
how to best market and support the “sale” of
the tourism product identified through the
tourism development plan.

2020 HAY RIVER TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PLAN 3




3. Researching the
Tourism Environment

The 2020 Hay River Tourism Development
Plan considers several key inputs and sources
of information. This information provides
prospective on the tourism environment for
Hay River and insight for setting strategies
and direction for the community to take in
developing its tourism product.

2012 TOWN OF HAY RIVER
TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PLAN

The 2012 Town of Hay River Tourism
Development Plan was built upon a diverse array
of research which included surveys, interviews,
and content reviews. Key observations,
suggestions and conclusions were identified and
formed the basis for a five year strategic plan.

Building a Solid Foundation

This plan identified the need to build a solid
foundation that included hiring a full time
Tourism Coordinator, developing the Town
website to include tourism packages, and
developing a marina that provides access to Hay
River's water based assets.

Coordinating, Collaborating and
Developing

The 2012 plan stressed the importance of
partnerships to develop packages and move
the community from a day-tripper destination
to a weekend or 2-3 day destination. Enhancing
the Visitor Information Centre, developing a
community brand, expanding relationships
with Katlodeeche First Nations, and building
community support for tourism were identified
priorities.

Assessing Development and Setting
Your Sights Higher

Improving the understanding of visitation was
thought to be needed to elevate tourism in the
community. Development of visitation data and
monitoring indicators would be important first
steps towards making informed decisions on
marketing and future tourism development.

2019 TOWN OF HAY RIVER
TOURISM AND ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
PLANNING SESSION

In October 2019 the Town's Tourism and
Economic Development Committee (T&EDC)
held a strategic planning session to develop
goals and strategies that they felt were
pertinent to developing tourism within

Hay River.

Tourism Goals

Through analysis of results of a TREDC SWOT
exercise, participants were asked to reflect
on some of the key messages they felt

were being presented and transpose them
into goals related to the general tourism
components of accommodations, accessibility,
and attractions. The goals would not be
actionable as themselves but would rely

on development and execution of specific
strategies or initiatives in order to achieve.
The resulting top goals agreed upon through
the group were:

- Enhanced Variety of Food Service Options
in Hay River

- Improved Online Tourism Presence and
Booking Services

- Developed Look, Theme and Beautification
of Hay River

- Improved Signage for Local Services,
Accommodations, Facilities and Attractions




Strategies

With the tourism goals defined, the TREDC
worked to identify realistic strategies to
achieve them. Strategies were voted on for
thought relevance and to prioritize for any

implementation. The top results are presented

for each goal.

- Enhanced Variety of Food Service Options
in Hay River
1. Promote a Multi-Cultural Food Festival
2. Promote Local Cuisine and Food
Ingredients
3. Promote Dene Food Culture and
Interactive Experiences

- Improved Online Tourism Presence and

Booking Services

1. Offer Social Media Training for All Local
Businesses

2. Improve Overall Reach of Audience for
Hay River Tourism Facebook Page

3. Encourage Tourists to Post & Share
Photos of Local Attractions

- Developed Look, Theme and Beautification

of Hay River

1. Incorporate Green Design and Building
Standards into Development Bylaws

2. Enhance Trails / Boardwalk Along River

3. Implement a Theme for the Town to
Incorporate into Infrastructure, Signage
and Promotions

- Improved Signage for Local Services,
Accommodations, Facilities and Attractions
1. Implement Key Interpretive and

Wayfinding Signage for Local Attractions
that Incorporate the Established Theme
of the Town

HAY RIVER NEW

2019-23 TOWN OF
HAY RIVER STRATEGIC PLAN

The current Town of Hay River Council
recognized the importance of taking a
strategic approach to outlining priorities that
would form the focus of their term of Council.
In 2019 Council met with Town management
and key representatives to develop a 4-year
strategic plan. The result of the session was

a high-level st document that set a new
vision, mission, goals and strategies for the
term through consideration of key pillars of
Governance, Economy, Social and Culture, and
Environment.

One of the goals identified in the 2019-23

Plan was to Promote Hay River as a Tourism
Destination. The goal set the tone for the
importance of tourism for the Town of Hay
River and represents a commitment to
ensuring appropriate resources are in place for
developing the tourism product. Strategies for
achieving the goal were identified as:

2020 HAY RIVER TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PLAN 5




2020 TOWN OF HAY RIVER
TOURISM AND ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
ANNUAL BUSINESS PLAN

The 2020 Tourism and Economic
Development Department (TREDD) Annual
Business Plan was developed in consideration
of several planning documents and
operational needs. It outlines key activities
planned to be executed by the Tourism and
Economic Development Department in 2020.

K'AMBA CARNIVAL DOG MUSHING

Update the Tourism Plan

Through consultation with various local
tourism operators, the Tourism and Economic
Development Committee of Council, NWT
tourism agencies, and Town Council, develop
a multi-year Tourism Plan that outlines key
initiatives and resources required to support
implementation.

- Develop Tourism Related Infrastructure
Facilities such as the Visitor Information
Centre, Fisherman's Wharf, beach and Porritt
Landing are attractive to tourists.

- Develop and Implement
a Tourism Marketing Strategy
Tourism focuses on Hay River's competitive
advantages in areas such as summer
tourism and athletic events.

Develop a Marketing Plan

Development and execution of a multiyear
plan for advertising and promoting core
elements of the Tourism Plan. This includes,

in coordination with regional municipalities,
outfitters, ITl,and NWT Tourism, a strategy and
materials to promote tourism within the South
Slave Region.

- Partner with external groups and regional
partners to support events and ideas that
bring tourists to Hay River
Hay River is known as a willing partner in
local and regional events that attract people
to the town and region.

Install Highway Signage

In conjunction with the implementation of
the Marketing Plan, the specific design and
implementation of highway signage intended

Other goals and strategies are presented to attract rubber tire traffic to the community.

in the 2019-23 that can serve to indirectly
improve tourism or could be achieved through
tourism related initiatives. These should be
considered in any tourism planning.

Support Outfitters and Guides

Advocate for development of outfitters and
guides, provide general support, and market
available services. Encourage and support the

+ Strengthen Relationships between Hay development of marketable tourist packages.

River and Local Indigenous Groups

Improve the Visitor Information Centre
Complete the final phase of improvements to
the Visitor Information Centre. This includes
landscaping, parking plan, and window covers.

- Promote and Celebrate Local Culture




."_:_o‘._-_s-_)

L —w"‘_ ma.
s s oo Tl

TOURISM 2020 - INDUSTRY,
TOURISM AND INVESTMENT
- GOVERNMENT OF THE
NORTHWEST TERRITORIES

The GNWT department responsible for
planning and managing tourism activity

at the Territorial level is Industry, Tourism
and Investment (ITl). The current version of
ITI's strategic planning document, Tourism
2020, outlines key focus areas the Territorial
Government will invest in to develop and
increase the tourism product for the whole
of the NWT. Hay River’s alignment with ITl's
direction can improve the strength of its
own tourism plan and better ensure GNWT
financial resources are available to execute it.

Focus Areas

Tourism 2020 concentrates on five focus areas
that serve as the foundation for development
of the tourism economy. The five focus areas
and their key objectives contribute toward
the development of products that appeal

to visitors. ITI has commmitted to developing
and investing in programs that support the
attainment of the five focus areas.

- Visitor Attraction and Experience

1. Increase Visitor Volume and Visitor
Spending

2. Increase Supply and Diversity of Tourism
Products

3. Sustain Demand through Visitor
Experience Excellence

- Aboriginal Cultural Tourism

1. Support and Encourage the Development
of Aboriginal Cultural Tourism

2. Increase Capacity to offer Aboriginal
Cultural Tourism

3. Strengthen Aboriginal Cultural Tourism
through Partnerships

- Community Tourism Development

1. Build the Foundation for Community
Tourism

2. Engage Stakeholders and Build Capacity
for Tourism

- Skills Development

1. Develop and Support the Tourism
Workforce

- Tourism Research and Planning

1. Focused Research

2. Gather, Assess, Report and Monitor

3. Support Research through Partnerships
and Engagement

2020 HAY RIVER TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PLAN 7




4. Forming the 2020
Hay River Tourism
Development Plan

By analyzing the key findings, conclusions and
strategies presented through the research,

a new strategic plan starts to take shape. An
important first step is to establish a common
understanding of what tourism should look
like for the future, what goals will be needed
to meet the vision, and what strategic actions
can be taken to meet its tourism goals.
Specific strategic initiatives that the Town will
undertake and support through the 3-year
perspective of the strategic plan can then be
articulated.

VISION

The Town of Hay River's tourism vision serves
to act as an inspirational driver for developing
its tourism product. It is defined through
understanding the Town's strategic position
within the local tourism environment and

its inherent strengths as a community.
Thousands of visitors travel by road each
year either to visit Hay River specifically or

as part of a journey through the NWT. As the
NWT continues to market travel and tourism
within the Territory, Hay River can capture an
increasing portion of the traffic and entice
visitors to spend time in the community
through an array of developed products and
services.

To be recognized as an
essential tourism hub
and destination of choice
for diversified rubber-tire
based tourism within the
Northwest Territories.

GOALS

Goals are set as tangible elements that if
achieved will make Hay River’s tourism Vision
a reality. Through analyzing the various inputs
considered in building Hay River's 2020
Tourism Development Plan, several goals
become apparent. It is important to recognize
that the goals can only be achieved through

a collaborative approach among the various
tourism stakeholders and partners within the
community. Coommunication and coordination
between these stakeholders and alignment of
business plans is critical.

Attract more rubber tire tourists

Become an indispensable component of
travel to the NWT

Extend visitors stay in the community

Celebrate our history, natural
environment, and culture

Develop a diversified, sustainable
catalogue of tourism products and
services

STRATEGIES

To achieve the defined tourism development
Goals, Hay River’s tourism strengths must

be leveraged, and weaknesses reduced to
capitalize on development opportunities
made apparent through the research
conducted and presented in this plan. The
following are the key tourism strategies that
Hay River should focus on during the 3-year
outlook of the plan.




Develop Infrastructure That Will
Showcase Hay River’s Natural
Environment and Culture

Hay River has an abundant supply of
natural features that are attractive to
prospective visitors. These are primarily
based around Hay River’s remarkable
water features. Cascading waterfalls at
the outskirts of the community, a large
river that runs beside and through the
community, and kilometers of sandy
beach nestled along one of the largest
lakes in the world, the Great Slave Lake,
are attractions that differentiate the
community from most. Developing
infrastructure that takes advantage of
these features and improves usability and
access is a critical strategy for developing
Hay River's tourism product.

Support and Encourage Market Ready
Tourism Product and Services Through
Strategic Partnerships

Perhaps the biggest weakness facing Hay
River for attracting and retaining visitors is
its lack of market ready tourism products
and services. There are very few organized
tours and services currently setup and
marketed. With an anticipated increase

in tourism demand in the area it will be
important to support the development

of new and enhanced tourism products
available. Strategic partnerships can
mitigate the risks inherent with any
organization or event start-up and help
ensure a better product can be delivered
to customers.

Entice Visitors to the Community Through
Improved Town Beautification

A common theme presented through the
research is that improved beautification

is thought to be needed to attract and
retain visitors in the community. It is also
thought to help with peer promotion of
the community especially through online
social media channels. Beautification is

thought to be highly controllable through
Town of Hay River bylaws and procedures
and at a relatively low expense. Town
beautification helps showcase the natural
features of the community and create
interest in local tourism infrastructure,
products and services.

Advance Marketing to Improve Awareness
of and Demand for Local Tourism
While this strategy does not serve to
develop a specific tourism product or
service, it was felt that awareness of
the importance of marketing could

not be overlooked in the 2020 tourism
development plan. General initiatives
are suggested for marketing areas that
the town should undertake. Specific
marketing initiatives will be presented
through a tourism marketing plan.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

Defining specific initiatives, the result that

is expected through their execution, and

the timeline needed for completion sets a
tangible operational plan for achieving the
defined tourism strategies. Again, our research
helps guide and suggest what activities are
desirable for the community. The defined
results and completion timelines for the
initiatives consider a logical prioritization and
limited resources available to the Town over a
3-year plan.

2020 HAY RIVER TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PLAN 9




Strategy: Develop Infrastructure That Will Showcase

Hay River’s Natural Environment and Culture

Initiatives Desired Result(s) Target
(We Will...) or Achievement(s) Completion
Time
a) Increase Capacity Capacity for 20+ seasonal rental slips 2020
of Porritt Landing
8+ slips for short term mooring by tourists 2020
Safe gateway to waterways 2021
b) Develop Fisherman's| Increased capacity of Fisherman’'s Wharf 2020
Wharf Pavilion market to 17+ booths
Fisherman's Wharf market season extended 2020

by at least 4 weeks

3to 4 events and festivals hosted per year 2021

On site watercraft mooring facilities in place 2021

Tourism operators using facility as a meeting place 2022

c) Improve Usability Public Beach encourages full-day activities for families 2020
of Local Beaches through new infrastructure and programming

Increased actions are taken to help ensure 2021

beaches are accessible and clean

d) Enhance Trail Trail signage provides direction and interpretive 2020
Systems information for all sections of the Great Trail
within main town boundaries
A new trail guide is developed and published 2021
Trail system supports winter activity such as 2021

snowmobiling, dogsledding, snowshoeing
and x-country skiing

The Great Trail is accessible year-round and 2022
is in good condition for a variety of uses
e) Support Bylaws and policies are in place to support the 2021
Development development and operation of unique tourism
of Unique accommodations

Accommodations
that Showcase
Natural Attractions

Multiple accommodation options are made available 2023
and promoted as offering natural attractions such as
Aurora viewing and water access.




Strategy: Support and Encourage Market Ready

Tourism Product and Services

Initiatives Desired Result(s) Target
(We Will...) or Achievement(s) Completion
Time
a) Support An Indigenous Culture Tourism Plan is developed in 2020
Development of partnership with local indigenous groups
Indigenous Tourism o .
Offerings Traditional foods and products are more readily 2022
available for purchase through local vendors
Interpretive cultural tours are being offered 2022
Reliable dogsledding tour operations available 2022
b) Support 4 to 6 tourism packages are established for 2022
Development of summer and winter seasons
Community
Tourism Packages Packages are marketed thrpugh seyeral 2022
channels and payment available online
Tourism packages have acceptable level of guarantee 2023
) Support Further Legislation and policies are put in place to 2020
Development of increase support for organizations hosting
Sports Tourism multi-community sporting events
One new Territorial championship is hosted 2021
One new National / multi province sporting 2022
tournament is hosted
Recreation facilities are enhanced to host 2022
new tournaments and championships
d) Increase Hosting of | Appropriate conferencing equipment and 2020
Conferences and supplies are available for Town facilities
Large Business . .
Meetings Roles defined and Town employees trained 2020
on conference hosting and event support
4 to 5 large business or conferences held per 2022
year within the town
e) Support Support offered to prospective tourism operators 2020
Development of through education, awareness, and lobbying
Tour Operators for business development
Formalized tours are offered such as interpretive 2023

waterfall tours, boat trips to waterfalls, fossil tours,
Aurora tours, industry tours of transportation facilities
(ie. MTS), industry and cultural tours of fishing facilities
(ie. Fish Processing Plant)

Continued on next page...

2020 HAY RIVER TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PLAN 11




a)

Support
Development of
Festivals and Events

Help Build

the Foundation
for Community
Tourism

In-kind support provided to increase feasibility
of existing or new festivals and events that attract
tourists to the community

1 new annual festival is formed that showcases culture,
local foods and uses new tourism infrastructure

Hay River Tourism social media accounts followed/liked
by 20% more local accounts

Town of Hay River’'s event calendar used by 30% of
registered local community groups. The event
calendar is considerd the main source of information
on local events and activities

NorthernMost Host courses offered to all local
hospitality and service businesses

Program in place to support development of an
integrated tourism culture within the community.

2020

2021

2020

2021

2021

2023

Strategy: Entice Visitors to the Community Through Improved

Town Beautification

Initiatives Desired Result(s) Target
(We Will...) or Achievement(s) Completion
Time
a) Develop Urban Guidelines developed outlining beautification and 2021
Beautification landscaping requirements for public and private entities
and Landscaping
Design Guidelines
b) Develop a Theme developed that showcases culture and 2021
Community Theme | history of the community
Evidence that theme incorporated into Town 2023
communication, marketing and development
C) Enhance Trees planted at Recreation Centre greenspace 2021
Landscaping of - -
Public Areas Plan developed for enhancing landscaping of 2021
existing parks and open spaces
Trees planted to shade downtown industrial 2023
area along highway
Downtown buildings’' designs and upkeep 2023
are in accordance with Town theme and
beautification guidelines
d) Increase Visibility Access to and visibility of the forks section 2021
and Access to River | (West Channel Bridge) of river improved
Brushing completed for areas that block viewing 2022

access of features and attractions including the river




Strategy: Advance Marketing to Improve Awareness of and

Demand for Local Tourism

Initiatives Desired Result(s) Target
(We Will...) or Achievement(s) Completion
Time
a) Development and Detailed operational plan that supports marketing 2020
Implementation of strategies identified in the 2020 Tourism
of a Tourism Development plan
Marketing Plan Increased face-to-face marketing through 2020
attendance at 5-6 relevant tradeshows
Development of relevant electronic and print marketing | 2021
material using local artist content where applicable
Promotional material developed for use at 2021
tradeshows and sponsored events
b) Improve Highway signage erected to entice rubber tire traffic 2020
Ident|f|cat|or) of Wayfinding signage throughout town to direct 2021
Local Attractions . S . .
o visitors and indicate points of interest
and Amenities
Consistently branded signage designed and installed 2021
for trails, parks, amenities and attractions. Inclusion of
“selfie” inspired signage.
) Improve Marketing |In consultation and alignment with ITI, gather, assess, 2020
Material Targeting report and monitor key visitation data from the Visitor
for Key Visitor Information Centre, local accommmodations, and local
Demographics tourism services
d) Improve Online Campaigns undertaken to increase Town 2020
Presence and Reach | social media account followers by 50%
Improve Town website's visitor information 2021
on events, attractions, activities and services
TripAdyvisor pages developed for all 2021
community tourism related organizations
Online sales of tourism services and packages established | 2021
e) Develop Strategic Conferences and meetings held in Hay River as a 2020
Partnerships with result of established relationship with NWT Tourism
Regional / Territorial | Conference Board
Marketing material developed that promotes 2021
the South Slave Region as a tourism destination
Increased rubber tire traffic to Hay River a result of a 2021
partnership with Mackenzie Frontier Tourism Board
Increased rubber tire traffic to Hay River a result 2022

of a partnerships with Western Arctic, North Slave
Region, Deh Cho Region

2020 HAY RIVER TOURISM DEVELOPMENT PLAN




AURORA OVER THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

Hayriver.com - Facebook.com/TownOfHayRiver ﬁ



BYLAW NO. 2419/LND/20
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

A BYLAW OF THE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER IN
THE NORTHWEST TERRITORIES, TO PROVIDE FOR THE ACQUISITION OF LAND.

WHEREAS pursuant to the Cities, Towns and Villages S.N.W.T., 2003, c.22, in force
April 1, 2004, Section 53 (1) which states:

53. (1) A municipal corporation may, for a municipal purpose,

(a) acquire real property;

(b) use, hold or develop real property owned by the municipal corporation;
and

(c) subdivide, in accordance with the Planning Act, real property owner by
the municipal corporation.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Council of the Town of Hay River in
the Northwest Territories in regular meeting of Council duly assembled enacts as
follows:

1. The Municipal Corporation of the Town of Hay River acquire LOT Four
Hundred Ninety Three (493), PLAN 360, Hay River from Ellison Watkins

and Cynthia Watkins, in consideration of the sum of FIFTY THREE
THOUSAND DOLLARS and NO CENTS ($53,000.00);

2. The said land be acquired for municipal purposes;

3. That the Mayor or Deputy Mayor and the Senior Administrative Officer of the said
Town of Hay River are hereby authorized to execute any documents to give
effect to the bylaw.

4, This bylaw will take force and effect upon its final reading.

READ A FIRST TIME this day of , 2020.

Mayor

READ A SECOND TIME this day of , 2020.

Mayor

READ A THIRD AND FINAL TIME this day of , 2020.

Mayor



BYLAW NO. 2419/LND/20
MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF HAY RIVER

CERTIFIED that this bylaw has been made in accordance with the requirements
of the Cities, Towns and Villages Act, S.N.W.T., 2003, and the bylaws of the
Municipal Corporation of the Town of Hay River this day of , 2020.

Senior Administrative Officer



LOT 493 PLAN 360
Government o 9 CARIBOU CRESCENT

Northwest Territories

——

/ 496
Plan 360
4

April 14, 2020
Legend
i1 Block Land Transfer Boundaries [] Municipal Boundaries
[] Development Areas [] Surveyed Parcels
] Building Footprints [ ] Surveyed Easements
- — Line Approximately 31m from O.H.W.M. Surface Land Withdrawal
- Tenured Commissioner's Land I:l Land Application
|:| Land Application [ Tenured Territorial Land Scale 1: 1,000
Federal Land Indian Affairs Branch (IAB) Land
I Commissioner's Land Territorial Land 25 metres
Territorial Protected Area Municipal Land
Private Land Hay River Reserve
UTM Zone: 11
COPYRIGHT Government of the Northwest Territories,
Department of Lands.




	0427  Regular Meeting of Council - agenda
	0420 Regular Meeting of Council Minutes
	Report to Council -  2020 Hay River Tourism Development Plan
	Hay River Tourism Plan - DRAFT  03052020
	BYLAW 2419 Acquisition of Lot 493 Plan 360
	Bylaw 2419 SKETCH Lot 493 Plan 360

